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 October 6, 2017 
 
 
 
Members of the Duplin County Board of Education and Citizens of Duplin County, North Carolina: 
 
 
In compliance with the Public School Laws of North Carolina, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
of the Duplin County Board of Education, operating as “Duplin County Schools”, for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2017, is herewith submitted.  Responsibility for accuracy, completeness, and clarity of the report 
rests with the Superintendent and the Chief Officer for School Finance. 
 
This report was prepared by the Finance Department in accordance with the requirements and guidelines 
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  We believe the data is accurate in all 
material respects and is presented in a manner designed to reflect fairly the financial position and results 
of operations of the Board.  Disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain maximum understanding 
of the Board’s financial activity have been included. 
 
This letter of transmittal is designed to complement Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and 
should be read in conjunction with it.  The MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the 
independent auditors. 
 
  
REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The Duplin County Board of Education (the “Board”) is the level of government having oversight 
responsibility and control over activities related to public school education in Duplin County, North Carolina. 
N.C. General Statutes empower the Duplin County Board of Education with general control and supervision 
of all matters pertaining to the schools in the system.  For the 2016-2017 fiscal year, the school system 
served students from kindergarten through 12th grade in 8 elementary schools, 3 middle schools, and 5 
high schools.  The oldest school in the District was built in 1947 while the newest school was constructed 
in 2009.  The average age of all school buildings is 44 years.  The school system provides general, special 
and vocational education services.  The school system receives local, State, and federal government 
funding and must comply with the legal requirements of each funding source.  While the Board does receive 
funding from Duplin County (the “County”), the County is not entitled to share in any surplus nor is it required 
to finance any deficits.  The Board, whose members are elected by the citizens of Duplin County, has the 
authority to designate management, make binding decisions, and significantly influence operations.  
However, the Board has no tax levying or borrowing authority and is required to maintain accounting records 
in a uniform State format.  The Board has final approval over the budget and primary accountability for 
fiscal matters.  Accordingly, the Duplin County Board of Education is not included in any other reporting 
entity. 
 
 
ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 
 
Duplin County’s economy has historically been based on agriculture.  In the past, tobacco and row crops 
were the staples of agricultural production.  In more recent years, poultry and livestock production has 
displaced crops as the primary source of production. As a result, Duplin County’s population has grown 
nearly 22 percent since 2000, to an estimated population of 59,159. The unemployment rate for Duplin 
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County was 4.6 percent at June 30, 2017 as compared to the State of N.C. unemployment rate of 4.2 
percent at June 30, 2017. 
 
The Board of Education had an average daily membership (ADM) of 9,860 during the 2016-2017 school 
year compared to 9,952 during the 2015-2016 year, a decrease of 92 students. The State projected a slight 
decrease for 2017-2018 with a projected ADM of 9,650 students. 
 
The production of alternative energy fuel crops is a future agribusiness growth opportunity for the County. 
Important research is being conducted locally on alternative crops for the production of ethanol and 
biodiesel fuels that would not compete with Midwestern corn supplies which are critical for local livestock 
production. Other fuel crops such as industrial sweet potatoes and canola are being evaluated at the North 
Carolina State University Williamsdale Research farm located in Duplin County. 
 
Manufacturing, including agricultural related processing, is an important segment of the County's 
employment.  Approximately 30% of the County's workforce is employed in agricultural related processing 
and manufacturing.  Of the ten largest companies in the County, five are engaged in agricultural production 
or processing. 
 
Due to the County's geographic proximity to the military installations of Camp Lejeune, Seymour Johnson 
Air Force Base, New River Air Station and Cherry Point Air Station, Duplin County is strategically positioned 
to support projected military growth.  Initiatives of growth to attract military population or business include 
civic and community efforts. 
 
 
MAJOR INITIATIVES 
 
The goals of the school system as outlined in the 5 year Strategic Plan are as follows: 
 

 Student academic success for every PreK-13 student. 
 All students will receive a personalized education through access to STEM, career, college, and 

digital learning. 
 Every student will be instructed and supported by excellent and innovative leaders, teachers, and 

personnel. 
 Develop and maintain strategic partnerships supported by 21st Century financial, business and 

technology systems. 
 Provide safe and nurturing facilities for all PreK-13 students and staff. 

 
Duplin County Schools is one of two school districts in the nation following a District-Wide Early College 
Approach to Seamless Education.  Through a partnership with James Sprunt Community College, Duplin 
students are immersed in a college-going climate and culture beginning in Pre-Kindergarten.  The goal for 
each child is college, career, and life success.  For more information, visit duplinschools.net or call the 
Office of Public Information at 910.296.6623. 
 
The Capital Outlay Bond project approved by County Commissioners and Board of Education in 2016-
2017 fiscal year totaled $60 million and includes the following projects: 
 

 Kenansville convert from PreK-5 to PreK-8 
 Rose Hill Magnolia convert from PreK-5 to PreK-8 
 Wallace convert from PreK-5 to PreK-8 
 Warsaw convert from PreK-5 to PreK-8 
 BF Grady expansion with sewer main 
 North Duplin Jr./Sr. auxiliary gym 
 Existing middle schools (Warsaw E.E. Smith and Charity) were closed.  The students from these 

schools were sent to one of the PreK-8 facilities at the opening of the 2017-2018 school year. 
 
These projects are expected to be fully completed by December 2017. 
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FINANCIAL AND BUDGETARY CONTROLS 
 

The cost of public school education in North Carolina is financed primarily by the State, which establishes 
minimum programs.  Local funds supplement the basic programs and are appropriated by the local board 
of county commissioners.   
 
Monthly reports on transactions of State and federal funds and details of disbursements from State funds 
are submitted to the North Carolina Department of Public Instruction for review.   
 
Financial activities throughout the year are controlled in accordance with the North Carolina School Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act, which requires a pre-audit procedure to ensure availability of funds prior to the 
issuance of purchase orders or payment of claims.  Outstanding purchase orders at the end of the fiscal 
year related to normal operations are cancelled and renewed in the following fiscal year. 
 
The Board’s accounts are organized in funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity, to 
record the allocation of and accounting for governmental resources for which they are spent and controlled.  
Each individual fund accounting entity records their operations under a set of self-balancing accounts 
comprising of assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate.   
 
The Board’s funds are divided into three major classifications:  governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.  
The governmental fund types include the general fund, the special revenue funds and the capital outlay 
fund.  The Board’s enterprise fund is presented as a proprietary fund type.  The scholarship (private-
purpose trust) fund is included as a fiduciary fund type of the Board.  All governmental fund types are 
accounted for and reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with G.S. 115C-
440(b).  The proprietary fund type and fiduciary fund are presented in the financial statement on the accrual 
basis of accounting. 
 
North Carolina General Statutes also require all governmental units to adopt a balanced budget by July 1st 
of each year.  The Board’s annual budget resolution authorizes expenditures at functional level under the 
modified accrual basis except for the enterprise fund, which is budgeted on the accrual basis, and the 
individual schools special revenue fund. For internal management purposes, the budget is allocated to line 
item expenditure accounts.  The budgetary amounts presented in the accompanying financial statements 
are in conformity with the legally adopted budget ordinance as amended throughout the fiscal year.  The 
Board uses a purchase order encumbrance system to record encumbrances outstanding against each 
expenditure line item to ensure compliance with adopted budget limits.  All non-capital outlay outstanding 
encumbrances are reversed at year-end.  Capital Outlay encumbrances are carried over into the 
subsequent year and the corresponding budget amounts are re-appropriated. 
 
In developing and improving the Board’s accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of 
internal control.  Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance 
regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, the reliability of 
financial records for preparing financial statements, and maintaining the accountability for assets.  The 
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely 
to be derived and that the evaluation of cost and benefits requires estimates and judgments by 
management.  All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework.  We believe that the 
Board’s internal control adequately safeguards assets and provides reasonable assurance of proper 
recording of financial transactions. 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDIT 

 
Anderson Smith & Wike PLLC, independent certified public accountants, whose opinion is expressed on 
page one, have audited the financial statements. The Duplin County Board of Education complies with the 
requirements of the Single Audit Act for which separate reports are issued.   
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AWARDS 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Duplin County 
Board of Education earned the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting and the Association of School Business Officials (ASBO) 
Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting Award.  The awards are made only to governmental units 
that publish a comprehensive annual financial report, which is easily readable, efficiently organized, and 
conforms to program standards as well as satisfying generally accepted accounting principles. Awards are 
valid for one year only. We believe the accompanying report continues to conform to GFOA and ASBO 
requirements, and we will submit it for determination of eligibility for renewed awards. 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the dedicated efforts of the finance 
staff and the Board’s independent certified public accounting firm of Anderson Smith & Wike PLLC. We 
wish to express appreciation to all employees who assisted in the timely closing of the Duplin County Board 
of Education’s fiscal records as well as the preparation of this report.   
 
We would also like to express appreciation to the members of the Board of Education for their support in 
planning and conducting the financial affairs of the school system in a responsible and professional manner. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
Dr. Austin Obasohan 
Superintendent 
 

 
Ashley Sutton 
Chief Financial Officer 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
To the Duplin County Board of Education 
Kenansville, North Carolina 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Duplin County Board of 
Education, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.     
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
  
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions  
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Duplin County Board of Education as of June 30, 
2017, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the 
respective budgetary comparison for the General, State Public School and Federal Grants funds for the 
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 



 

Other Ma
 
Required 
 
Accountin
Discussio
the Net P
presented
basic fina
to be an 
operationa
suppleme
of Americ
and comp
financial s
We do n
procedure
 
Suppleme
 
Our audit 
comprise 
individual 
accompan
of Federa
Requirem
purposes 
   
The comb
and other
are the r
accountin
subjected
additional
accountin
additional
America. 
budgetary
federal an
statement
the auditi
express n
 
Other Re
 
In accord
2017 on 
reporting 
agreemen
internal co
an opinion
an audit 
Board of E
 

 
October 6
West End
(910) 603

atters 

Supplementa

ng principles 
on and Analys
Pension Liabil
d to supplem
ncial stateme
essential par
al, economic,

entary informa
ca, which con
paring the info
statements, a
not express 
es do not prov

entary and Ot

was conduct
the Duplin C
nonmajor fu

nying schedu
al Regulations
ments for Fed

of additional 

bining and in
r schedules, a
responsibility 
g and other r
 to the audit
 procedures,
g and other 
 procedures 
 In our opinio

y schedules a
nd State awa
ts taken as a
ing procedur

no opinion on 

porting Requ

ance with Go
our consider
and on our te

nts and other
ontrol over fin
n on internal 
performed in
Education’s in

6, 2017 
d, North Carol
3-0508  

ary Informatio

generally ac
sis on pages 
ity and the S
ent the basic

ents, is require
rt of financial 
, or historical
ation in accord
sisted of inqu
ormation for 

and other know
an opinion o
vide us with s

ther Informatio

ted for the pu
County Board
und schedule
le of expendi

s (CFR) Part 
deral Awards,
analysis and 

dividual nonm
as well as the

of managem
records used 
ing procedur
 including co
records use
in accordanc

on, the combin
and other sc
ards are fair

a whole. The 
es applied in
them. 

uired by Gov

overnment A
ration of the 
ests of its co
r matters.  T
nancial report
control over f

n accordance 
nternal contro

lina 

on 

ccepted in the
3 through 10
chedule of B

c financial sta
ed by the Gov
reporting for 
 context.  We
dance with au
uiries of mana
consistency w
wledge we ob
or provide a
sufficient evide

on 

urpose of form
 of Education
es, budgetary
tures of feder
200, Uniform
, and the Sta
are not a req

major fund fin
e accompanyi
ment and we
to prepare th

res applied in
omparing and
ed to prepare
ce with auditi
ning and indiv

chedules, as 
rly stated, in 
introductory s
n the audit o

vernment Au

uditing Stand
Duplin Coun

mpliance with
he purpose o
ting and com
financial repo
with Govern

ol over financi

2 

e United Sta
 and the Sch
oard Contribu
atements.  S
vernmental A
placing the 

e have applie
uditing standa
agement abo
with managem
btained during
ny assuranc
ence to expre

ming opinions
n’s basic fina
y schedules 
ral and State 
 Administrativ
ate Single A

quired part of 

nancial statem
ing schedule 
ere derived f
he basic finan
n the audit of
d reconciling 
e the basic f
ng standards
vidual nonma
well as the 
all material 

section and s
of the basic 

uditing Stand

dards, we hav
nty Board of
h certain prov
of that report
pliance and t

orting or on co
nment Auditin
al reporting a

 

ates of Ameri
hedule of the 
utions on pag

Such informat
Accounting Sta
basic financia

ed certain lim
ards generall

out the metho
ment’s respo
g our audit of

ce on the inf
ess an opinion

s on the finan
ancial stateme

and the sta
awards as re
ve Requireme

Audit Impleme
the basic fina

ments and sc
of expenditur
from and re

ncial statemen
f the basic fi
such informa

financial state
s generally ac
ajor fund finan
accompanyin
respects, in 

statistical tab
financial sta

dards 

ve also issue
f Education’s
visions of law
t is to descri
the results of 
ompliance.  T
ng Standards
and complianc

ica require th
Board’s Prop

ges 47 and 4
tion, although
andards Boar
al statements

mited procedu
y accepted in

ods of prepari
onses to our i
f the basic fin
formation be
n or provide a

ncial statemen
ents.  The in
atistical table
equired by the
ents, Cost Pr
entation Act, 
ancial stateme

chedules, bu
res of federal

elate directly 
nts.  Such info
nancial state
ation directly
ements them
ccepted in th
ncial statemen
ng schedule 

relation to t
les have not 

atements, an

ed our report
 internal con

ws, regulation
ibe the scope
that testing, 

That report is
s in consider
ce. 

hat Managem
portionate Sh
48, respective
h not a part o
rd who consid
s in an appro
res to the req
n the United S
ing the inform
nquiries, the 

nancial statem
ecause the li
any assuranc

nts that collec
troductory se
s, as well a
e Title 2 U.S. 
rinciples, and 
are presente

ents. 

dgetary sche
l and State aw
to the unde

formation has
ements and c
y to the unde
mselves, and 

e United Sta
nts and sched
of expenditur
the basic fin
been subjec
d accordingl

t dated Octob
ntrol over fin
ns, contracts, 
e of our test
and not to pr

s an integral p
ring Duplin C

ment’s 
are of 

ely, be 
of the 
ders it 

opriate 
quired 
States 
mation 

basic 
ments.  
imited 

ce. 

ctively 
ection, 
as the 

Code 
Audit 

ed for 

edules 
wards 
erlying 
s been 
certain 
erlying 

other 
tes of 
dules, 
res of 
ancial 
ted to 
y, we 

ber 6, 
ancial 
grant 

ing of 
rovide 
part of 

County 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS       

)

Financial Highlights 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (required supplementary information)

Basic Financial Statements

Required supplemental section that presents budgetary statements for nonmajor governmental funds 
and budgetary statements for enterprise funds.

Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide Statements

e Fund Financial Statements, 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS       

Government-wide Statements 

Governmental activities

Business-type activities

Fund Financial Statements 

Governmental funds:



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS       

Proprietary funds:

Fiduciary funds:

Financial Analysis of the Board as a Whole 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS       

Table 1
Condensed Statement of Net Position

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS       

Table 2
Condensed Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS       

Financial Analysis of the Board’s Funds 

Governmental Funds:

Categorization of Expenditures for Governmental Funds
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DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS       

Proprietary Funds:

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Capital Assets 

Table 3
Summary of Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016

Debt Outstanding 
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DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION  Exhibit 1

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4,717,837$      2,097,084$     6,814,921$      
Investments -                       4,286,992       4,286,992        
Due from other governments 4,925,695        166,400          5,092,095        
Receivables 915                  -                      915                  
Internal balances (37,430)            37,430            -                       
Inventories 114,556           74,716            189,272           
Prepaid expenses 475,569           -                      475,569           
Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress 54,826,902      24,000            54,850,902      
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 47,450,184      151,329          47,601,513      

Total capital assets 102,277,086    175,329          102,452,415    

Total assets 112,474,228    6,837,951       119,312,179    

Deferred Outflows of Resources 22,324,935      744,091          23,069,026      

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,253,836        11,726            4,265,562        
Accrued salaries and wages payable 1,422,576        25,437            1,448,013        
Unearned revenue 243,851           12,063            255,914           
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 2,969,787        46,188            3,015,975        
Due in more than one year 7,276,354        26,516            7,302,870        
Net pension liability 32,722,256      1,090,635       33,812,891      

Total liabilities 48,888,660      1,212,565       50,101,225      

Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,546,499        51,545            1,598,044        

Net position

Net investment in capital assets 97,007,738      175,329          97,183,067      
Restricted for:

Stabilization by State statute 39,795             -                      39,795             
School capital outlay 146,686           -                      146,686           
Instructional services 22,638             -                      22,638             
Individual schools activities 746,658           -                      746,658           

Unrestricted (13,599,511)     6,142,603       (7,456,908)       

Total net position 84,364,004$    6,317,932$     90,681,936$    

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2017    

Primary Government

11



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 2
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 3

Assets

Liabilities and fund balances

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2017



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 4

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 5

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
  IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 6

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

GENERAL FUND AND ANNUALLY BUDGETED MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 6 (continued)

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GENERAL FUND AND ANNUALLY BUDGETED MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 6 (continued)

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GENERAL FUND AND ANNUALLY BUDGETED MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 7
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net position

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

June 30, 2017



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 8

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 9
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

NONCASH OPERATING AND NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 10
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND

Assets

Liabilities

Net position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

June 30, 2017



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION Exhibit 11
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Additions:

Deductions:

Change in net position

Ending net position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Government-wide Statements

governmental business-
type activities

Fund Financial Statements
governmental and proprietary 

General Fund.

State Public School Fund.



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Federal Grants Fund

Individual Schools Fund

Capital Outlay Fund.

School Food Service Fund.

Liberty Hall Fund.

Dickson Loan Fund.

The Southeast Education Alliance Fund

The Kenan Auditorium Renovation Fund.

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Fund Financial Statements



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Nonspendable fund balance



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Restricted fund balance

Committed Fund Balance – 

Unassigned fund balance

fund balance - total
governmental funds net position – governmental activities



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds changes in net 
position of governmental activities



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

NOTE 2 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Plan Description

Benefits Provided

Contributions.



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Refunds of Contributions

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Actuarial Assumptions.

Asset Class Target Allocation
Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return

Discount rate.



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate

1% Decrease 
(6.25%)

Discount Rate 
(7.25%)

1% Increase 
(8.25%)

Pension plan fiduciary net position.

Plan Description

Funding Policy



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 

Plan Description

Funding Policy
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES 
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DUPLIN COUNTY SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF THE BOARD'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
TEACHERS' AND STATE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS*



DUPLIN COUNTY SCHOOLS

TEACHERS' AND STATE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution 5,028,717$      4,604,651$      4,528,862$     3,993,922$      
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 5,028,717        4,604,651        4,528,862       3,993,922        

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                     -$                     -$                    -$                     

Board's covered-employee payroll 50,387,942$    50,324,059$    49,495,759$   45,959,997$    

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 9.98% 9.15% 9.15% 8.69%

*  This schedule was implemented as a result of GASB 68 in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 and will
    show 10 years of data as it becomes available.

SCHEDULE OF BOARD CONTRIBUTIONS

LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS* 
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SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
INDIVIDUAL SCHOOLS FUND 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
INDIVIDUAL SCHOOLS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - 
  BUDGET AND ACTUAL

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
ENTERPRISE FUND 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017



LIBERTY HALL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
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DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Assets

Net position

June 30, 2017



DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Additions:

Deductions:

Change in net position

Ending net position
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STATISTICAL SECTION 
(Unaudited) 

 
 
The Statistical Section of the District’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial 
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the District’s 
overall financial outlook. 

 
 

Sections 
 
Financial Trends 
 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 
District’s financial performance and operations have changed over time. 

 
Revenue Capacity           
 

Since the District’s local revenues are primarily provided by Duplin County, these 
schedules on the county’s revenue sources are relevant to an understanding of Duplin 
County’s most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

 
Debt Capacity           
 

Since the District has no tax-levying or debt-issuing authority, the County of Duplin 
provides significant funding to the school system.  Selected fiscal data from the County 
of Duplin has been included to help the reader better understand the school system and 
its financial operations. 

 
Demographic and Economic Information 
 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the District’s financial activities take place.  
County information is included. 

 
 Operating Information 
          

These schedules contain service data to help the reader understand how the information 
in the District’s financial report relates to the services the District provides and the 
activities it performs. 





Table 1

State of North Carolina 62,896,807$      Instructional services 73,491,168$      
Duplin County 56,653,285        System-wide support services 16,849,972        
Federal 8,854,372          Unallocated depreciation 352,258             
School food service 5,289,839          School food service 5,204,235          
Other 4,326,102          Other 362,615             

Total revenue sources 138,020,405$    Total expenses 96,260,248$      

Financial Perspective
Governmental and Business-type Activities

For Year Ended June 30, 2017

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

State of North 
Carolina 

Duplin  County

Federal

School food 
serviceOther

Revenue Sources

Instructional 
services

System‐wide 
support services

Unallocated 
depreciation

School food 
serviceOther

Expenses

58



Table 2

Year Ended June 30 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Governmental activities:

Net investment in capital assets 48,517,548$   48,075,722$   48,454,472$   49,107,021$   47,963,740$   47,883,304$   47,932,022$   46,290,246$   52,574,657$   97,007,738$   
Restricted 1,025,870       858,496          661,213          1,496,346       1,306,762       1,493,543       1,556,356       1,431,820       1,299,006       955,777          
Unrestricted 3,390,126       1,586,781       2,999,326       4,068,752       8,061,690       6,680,552       2,160,957       (12,083,785)    (10,874,530)    (13,599,511)    

52,933,544$   50,520,999$   52,115,011$   54,672,119$   57,332,192$   56,057,399$   51,649,335$   35,638,281$   42,999,133$   84,364,004$   

Business-type activities:
Net investment in capital assets 368,484$        324,832$        307,547$        271,140$        267,655$        218,169$        190,493$        179,510$        180,366$        175,329$        
Unrestricted 3,875,001       3,558,975       3,871,842       4,520,266       4,477,419       5,049,354       5,899,471       5,498,256       5,742,280       6,142,603       

4,243,485$     3,883,807$     4,179,389$     4,791,406$     4,745,074$     5,267,523$     6,089,964$     5,677,766$     5,922,646$     6,317,932$     

District-wide:
Net investment in capital assets 48,886,032$   48,400,554$   48,762,019$   49,378,161$   48,231,395$   48,101,473$   48,122,515$   46,469,756$   52,755,023$   97,183,067$   
Restricted 1,025,870       858,496          661,213          1,496,346       1,306,762       1,493,543       1,556,356       1,431,820       1,299,006       955,777          
Unrestricted 7,265,127       5,145,756       6,871,168       8,589,018       12,539,109     11,729,906     8,060,428       (6,585,529)      (5,132,250)      (7,456,908)      

57,177,029$   54,404,806$   56,294,400$   59,463,525$   62,077,266$   61,324,922$   57,739,299$   41,316,047$   48,921,779$   90,681,936$   

Source:  Duplin County Board of Education, North Carolina, Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2017

Note:  Net position for 2014 and before are not comparable to 2015 and after net position due to the implementation of GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, for the year ended June 30, 2015.
 

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Table 3

Year Ended June 30 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Expenses

Governmental activities:
Instructional services 60,595,931$  62,357,999$  59,259,019$  60,262,412$  59,583,949$  63,414,764$  64,523,958$  67,033,854$  68,343,664$  73,491,168$  
System-wide support services 12,541,318    15,292,300    14,214,337    15,655,930    17,037,224    17,914,870    18,359,098    16,163,282    15,459,211    16,849,972    
Ancillary services 32,003           18,363           27,667           10,529           105,019         102,045         29,315           21,141           24,800           21,156           
Non-programmed charges -                     -                     21,536           12,044           1,689             990                3,416             3,881             15,669           18,064           
Interest on long-term debt 12,516           14,021           102                -                     -                     -                     224,449         58,292           93,514           87,517           
Loss on disposal of capital assets -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Unallocated depreciation expense 2,147,465      2,220,719      2,274,343      1,292,298      393,268         282,041         115,648         540,788         330,791         352,258         

Total governmental activities expenses 75,329,233    79,903,402    75,797,004    77,233,213    77,121,149    81,714,710    83,255,884    83,821,238    84,267,649    90,820,135    

Business-type activities:

School food service 5,399,399      4,976,774      5,101,388      5,224,474      5,537,060      5,318,808      5,413,243      5,328,138      5,408,452      5,204,235      

Child care 158,607         101,182         40,517           29,802           41,504           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Liberty Hall 205,753         121,160         210,536         206,653         130,697         164,034         157,324         144,388         133,015         235,878         

5,763,759      5,199,116      5,352,441      5,460,929      5,709,261      5,482,842      5,570,567      5,472,526      5,541,467      5,440,113      

Total district-wide expenses 81,092,992$  85,102,518$  81,149,445$  82,694,142$  82,830,410$  87,197,552$  88,826,451$  89,293,764$  89,809,116$  96,260,248$  

Program Revenues

Governmental activities:
Charges for services 1,282,914      1,270,205      1,528,335      571,587         490,915         386,119         392,546         2,284,623      2,227,766      2,005,040      
Operating grants and contributions 58,513,558    59,556,392    60,057,385    61,402,598    61,300,880    61,808,659    57,957,059    63,341,981    64,162,664    66,394,356    
Capital grants and contributions 13,359           35,679           1,367,784      -                     78,326           558,283         249,925         658,285         785,003         910,114         

Total governmental activities program revenues 59,809,831    60,862,276    62,953,504    61,974,185    61,870,121    62,753,061    58,599,530    66,284,889    67,175,433    69,309,510    

Business-type activities:     
Charges for services:

Student meal services 1,150,158      1,161,955      1,146,580      1,067,573      1,025,967      991,501         951,787         587,084         585,668         318,054         

Child care services 150,733         94,325           37,254           42,768           51,082           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Liberty Hall 7,663             7,436             7,020             5,048             7,129             4,804             7,353             5,590             5,254             5,520             
Operating grants and contributions 3,805,295      3,862,952      4,115,382      4,384,956      4,544,082      4,584,300      4,819,447      4,959,046      5,127,500      5,041,985      
Capital grants and contributions -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     14,526           22,556           -                     

Total business-type activities program revenues 5,113,849      5,126,668      5,306,236      5,500,345      5,628,260      5,580,605      5,778,587      5,566,246      5,740,978      5,365,559      

Total district-wide program revenues 64,923,680$  65,988,944$  68,259,740$  67,474,530$  67,498,381$  68,333,666$  64,378,117$  71,851,135$  72,916,411$  74,675,069$  

Net (Expense) Revenue

Governmental activities (15,519,402)$ (19,041,126)$ (12,843,500)$ (15,259,028)$ (15,251,028)$ (18,961,649)$ (24,656,354)$ (17,536,349)$ (17,092,216)$ (21,510,625)$ 

Business-type activities (649,910)        (72,448)          (46,205)          39,416           (81,001)          97,763           208,020         93,720           199,511         (74,554)          

Total district-wide net (expense) revenue (16,169,312)$ (19,113,574)$ (12,889,705)$ (15,219,612)$ (15,332,029)$ (18,863,886)$ (24,448,334)$ (17,442,629)$ (16,892,705)$ (21,585,179)$ 

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Table 3(continued)

Year Ended June 30 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities:

Unrestricted county appropriations - operating 7,347,646$    7,727,529$    7,727,529$    8,861,720$    8,861,720$    9,287,444$    9,000,000$    9,485,760$    9,553,920$    9,465,600$    
Unrestricted county appropriations - capital 1,830,000      2,957,166      1,438,825      1,131,017      956,217         1,147,462      1,520,827      995,965         6,298,294      47,187,685    
Unrestricted State appropriations - operating 4,064,792      3,817,012      3,714,655      1,390,017      1,158,761      3,427,335      6,162,423      5,158,636      5,108,035      4,804,787      
Unrestricted State appropriations - capital 233,805         233,805         59,590           1,495,180      1,051,444      1,021,837      729,771         -                     2,172,691      -                     
Unrestricted Federal appropriations - capital -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Investment earnings, unrestricted 391,549         277,171         55,037           48,454           42,973           35,482           28,123           22,555           21,122           19,651           
Miscellaneous, unrestricted 1,549,294      1,693,287      1,534,346      4,935,807      5,857,923      2,812,356      2,868,013      1,356,736      1,379,599      1,452,766      
Transfers -                     (77,389)          (92,470)          (46,059)          (17,937)          (45,060)          (60,867)          (53,020)          (80,593)          (54,993)          

Total governmental activities 15,417,086    16,628,581    14,437,512    17,816,136    17,911,101    17,686,856    20,248,290    16,966,632    24,453,068    62,875,496    

Business-type activities:
Investment earnings, unrestricted (170,745)        (364,619)        249,317         526,542         16,732           379,626         553,554         (8,402)            (35,224)          414,847         
Miscellaneous, unrestricted -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Transfers -                     77,389           92,470           46,059           17,937           45,060           60,867           53,020           80,593           54,993           

Total business-type activities (170,745)        (287,230)        341,787         572,601         34,669           424,686         614,421         44,618           45,369           469,840         
Total district-wide 15,246,341$  16,341,351$  14,779,299$  18,388,737$  17,945,770$  18,111,542$  20,862,711$  17,011,250$  24,498,437$  63,345,336$  

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities (102,316)$      (2,412,545)$   1,594,012$    2,557,108$    2,660,073$    (1,274,793)$   (4,408,064)$   (569,717)$      7,360,852$    41,364,871$  
Business-type activities (820,655)        (359,678)        295,582         612,017         (46,332)          522,449         822,441         138,338         244,880         395,286         

Total district-wide change in net position (922,971)$      (2,772,223)$   1,889,594$    3,169,125$    2,613,741$    (752,344)$      (3,585,623)$   (431,379)$      7,605,732$    41,760,157$  

Source:  Duplin County Board of Education, North Carolina, Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2017

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Changes in Net Position (continued)

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Table 4

Year Ended June 30 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
General Fund

Reserved 1,149,549$  1,006,896$  909,811$     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  -$                 -$                  -$                  
Unreserved 3,646,219    3,079,105    4,063,608    -                   -                   -                   -                    -                   -                    -                    
Nonspendable -                   -                   -                   213,423       243,155        173,414        237,037        449,602        400,441        590,125        
Restricted -                   -                   -                   450,781       98,409          378,212        440,084        317,070        211,692        1,262,433     
Assigned -                   -                   -                   1,932,743    4,022,835     3,500,000     4,284,138     1,149,850     -                    -                    
Unassigned -                   -                   -                   5,736,044    7,703,299     7,361,670     2,171,210     3,964,619     3,609,689     1,530,977     

Total General Fund 4,795,768$  4,086,001$  4,973,419$  8,332,991$  12,067,698$ 11,413,296$ 7,132,469$   5,881,141$   4,221,822$   3,383,535$   

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved 336,004$     907,788$     1,071,254$  -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  -$                 -$                  -$                  
Unreserved, reported in

Special Revenue Funds 1,008,564    858,496       661,213       -                   -                   -                   -                    -                   -                    -                    
Capital Projects Fund 1,615,634    589,933       54,514         -                   -                   -                   -                    -                   -                    -                    

Restricted -                   -                   -                   1,090,045    1,208,353     1,115,331     1,116,272     1,114,750     1,087,314     893,344        
Total all other governmental funds 2,960,202$  2,356,217$  1,786,981$  1,090,045$  1,208,353$   1,115,331$   1,116,272$   1,114,750$   1,087,314$   893,344$      

Source: Duplin County Board of Education, North Carolina, Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2017

Note:  Fund balances for 2010 and before are not comparable to 2011 and after fund balances due to the implementation of GASB 54 for the year ended
June 30, 2011.  The standard replaces the previous reserved and unreserved fund balance categories with the following five fund balance classifications:

nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance.

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Governmental Funds

Fund Balances
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Table 5

Year Ended June 30 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Revenues

State of North Carolina 55,381,733$      56,055,096$      53,095,779$      53,518,605$      55,417,688$      
Duplin County 9,177,646          10,684,695        9,166,354          9,992,737          9,817,937          
U.S. Government 7,430,421          7,509,579          12,068,973        12,740,339        10,094,282        
Other 3,224,561          3,387,556          2,978,247          4,583,883          4,439,520          

Total revenues 75,214,361        77,636,926        77,309,353        80,835,564        79,769,427        

Expenditures
Instructional services 60,203,485        62,110,151        59,698,667        60,143,940        58,500,422        
System-wide support services 12,685,612        14,021,017        15,618,974        15,127,513        16,449,405        
Ancillary services 32,003               18,363               20,890               10,519               104,882             
Non-programmed charges 136,157             140,824             21,536               369,355             239,804             
Debt service - Principal 221,289             219,784             59,488               117,980             78,880               
Debt service - Interest 12,516               14,021               102                    -                        -                        
Capital outlay 1,119,705          2,045,786          1,891,381          2,134,231          1,554,512          

Total expenditures 74,410,767        78,569,946        77,311,038        77,903,538        76,927,905        

Revenues over (under) expenditures 803,594             (933,020)            (1,685)                2,932,026          2,841,522          

Other financing sources
Transfers to other funds -                        (77,389)              (92,470)              (46,059)              (17,937)              
Installment purchase obligations -                        -                        232,029             82,753               999,698             

Total other financing sources -                        (77,389)              139,559             36,694               981,761             

Net change in fund balances 803,594$           (1,010,409)$       137,874$           2,968,720$        3,823,283$        

Ratio of debt service expenditures to 
total non-capital expenditures 0.32% 0.31% 0.08% 0.16% 0.11%

Year Ended June 30 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Revenues

State of North Carolina 56,665,606$      57,006,199$      59,859,404$      63,832,009$      62,896,807$      
Duplin County 10,434,906        10,520,827        10,481,725        15,852,214        56,653,285        
U.S. Government 10,045,217        7,885,009          8,690,170          8,197,181          8,854,372          
Other 3,519,871          3,712,542          4,594,767          4,288,626          4,184,623          

Total revenues 80,665,600        79,124,577        83,626,066        92,170,030        132,589,087      

Expenditures
Instructional services 60,970,614        62,386,917        66,466,858        68,231,260        69,292,061        
System-wide support services 17,263,429        18,039,949        15,989,892        15,432,110        15,420,181        
Ancillary services 102,045             29,315               21,158               24,818               21,144               
Non-programmed charges 181,613             130,766             185,406             336,605             227,152             
Debt service - Principal 558,283             451,925             951,224             1,045,721          1,186,437          
Debt service - Interest -                        22,449               58,292               93,514               87,517               
Capital outlay 6,064,226          3,008,758          1,906,136          10,086,660        48,622,266        

Total expenditures 85,140,210        84,070,079        85,578,966        95,250,688        134,856,758      

Revenues over (under) expenditures (4,474,610)         (4,945,502)         (1,952,900)         (3,080,658)         (2,267,671)         

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers to other funds (45,060)              (60,867)              (53,020)              (80,593)              (54,993)              
Installment purchase obligations 3,841,987          720,365             816,720             1,510,574          1,313,160          

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,796,927          659,498             763,700             1,429,981          1,258,167          

Net change in fund balances (677,683)$          (4,286,004)$       (1,189,200)$       (1,650,677)$       (1,009,504)$       

Ratio of debt service expenditures to 
total non-capital expenditures 0.71% 0.59% 1.22% 1.35% 1.49%

Source:  Duplin County Board of Education, North Carolina, Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2017

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Governmental Funds

Changes in Fund Balances
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Table 6

EXPRESSED IN NOMINAL DOLLARS

Year Ended June 30 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Average Daily Membership 8,865 8,815 8,837 8,945 9,158
Instructional 6,791$     7,046$     6,756$     6,724$     6,388$     
System-wide support 1,431       1,591       1,767       1,691       1,796       
Ancillary 4              2              2              1              11            

Total expenditures per pupil 8,226$     8,639$     8,525$     8,416$     8,195$     

Year Ended June 30 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Average Daily Membership 9,315 9,597 9,881 9,952 9,860
Instructional 6,545$     6,501$     6,727$     6,856$     7,028$     
System-wide support 1,853       1,880       1,618       1,551       1,564       
Ancillary 11            3              2              2              2              

Total expenditures per pupil 8,409$     8,384$     8,347$     8,409$     8,594$     

Year Ended June 30 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Instructional 3,104$     3,267$     3,100$     2,979$     2,784$     
System-wide support 654          738          811          749          783          
Ancillary 2              1              1              -               5              

Total expenditures per pupil 3,760$     4,006$     3,912$     3,728$     3,572$     

Year Ended June 30 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Instructional 2,803$     2,728$     2,819$     2,845$     2,869$     
System-wide support 794          789          678          644          638          
Ancillary 5              1              1              1              1              

Total expenditures per pupil 3,602$     3,518$     3,498$     3,490$     3,508$     

Source:  Duplin County Board of Education, North Carolina, Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2017.
The above operational expenditures per pupil include all governmental funds.

Note:  Nominal dollars reflect actual dollars of the period of the transaction. Constant dollars reflect dollars having a constant general 
purchasing power as shown by the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) (Calendar years 1982-1984=100).

EXPRESSED IN CONSTANT DOLLARS

EXPRESSED IN NOMINAL DOLLARS

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Operational Expenditures Per Pupil

Expenditures by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

EXPRESSED IN CONSTANT DOLLARS
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Table 7

Year Ended June 30 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Food sales 1,150,158$      1,161,809$      1,145,792$      1,067,573$      1,025,967$      
Federal reimbursements 3,373,615        3,425,412        3,711,132        3,740,341        3,941,518        
Federal commodities 281,430           292,540           244,250           332,199           285,987           
Other 20,909             266,949           2,318               34,300             239,559           

Total revenues 4,826,112$      5,146,710$      5,103,492$      5,174,413$      5,493,031$      

Year Ended June 30 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Food sales 991,501$         951,787$         587,084$         585,668$         318,054$         
Federal reimbursements 4,192,117        4,356,053        4,572,431        4,628,794        4,565,804        
Federal commodities 293,128           354,616           278,557           387,771           398,780           
Other 18,831             16,510             16,527             15,112             7,201               

Total revenues 5,495,577$      5,678,966$      5,454,599$      5,617,345$      5,289,839$      

Year Ended June 30 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Food sales 525,630$         538,640$         525,677$         472,959$         447,087$         
Federal reimbursements 1,541,766        1,588,096        1,702,627        1,657,056        1,717,602        
Federal commodities 128,615           135,628           112,059           147,172           124,625           
Other 9,556               123,763           1,063               15,196             104,393           

Total revenues 2,205,567$      2,386,127$      2,341,426$      2,292,383$      2,393,707$      

Year Ended June 30 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Food sales 424,618$         399,335$         246,014$         242,998$         129,842$         
Federal reimbursements 1,795,308        1,827,640        1,916,053        1,920,518        1,863,936        
Federal commodities 125,534           148,784           116,728           160,889           162,797           
Other 8,065               6,927               6,926               6,270               2,940               

Total revenues 2,353,525$      2,382,686$      2,285,721$      2,330,675$      2,159,515$      

Source:  Duplin County Board of Education, North Carolina, Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Note:  Other revenue includes interest earned, State reimbursements, indirect costs not paid, and other revenue.

Note:  Nominal dollars reflect actual dollars of the period of the transaction.  Constant dollars reflect dollars having a constant general
purchasing power as shown by the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U)  (Calendar years 1982-1984 = 100).

EXPRESSED IN CONSTANT DOLLARS

EXPRESSED IN CONSTANT DOLLARS

EXPRESSED IN NOMINAL DOLLARS

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Proprietary Fund - Food Services Operations

Revenues by Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years

EXPRESSED IN NOMINAL DOLLARS
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Table 8

Year Ended June 30 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Purchase of food 2,437,245$      2,154,943$      2,058,017$      2,154,849$      2,246,664$      
Salaries and benefits 2,224,516        2,329,492        2,277,120        2,357,396        2,484,177        
Other 737,638           757,786           766,251           712,229           806,219           

Total expenses 5,399,399$      5,242,221$      5,101,388$      5,224,474$      5,537,060$      

Year Ended June 30 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Purchase of food 2,545,769$      2,548,443$      2,410,025$      2,469,686$      2,257,049$      
Salaries and benefits 2,622,182        2,650,849        2,618,349        2,626,208        2,628,160        
Other 150,857           213,951           299,764           312,558           319,026           

Total expenses 5,318,808$      5,413,243$      5,328,138$      5,408,452$      5,204,235$      

Year Ended June 30 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Purchase of food 1,113,838$      999,079$         944,196$         954,647$         979,032$         
Salaries and benefits 1,016,620        1,080,004        1,044,718        1,044,380        1,082,534        
Other 337,106           351,326           351,548           315,534           351,327           

Total expenses 2,467,564$      2,430,409$      2,340,462$      2,314,561$      2,412,893$      

Year Ended June 30 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Purchase of food 1,090,246$      1,069,233$      1,009,908$      1,024,689$      921,414$         
Salaries and benefits 1,122,971        1,112,199        1,097,205        1,089,631        1,072,915        
Other 64,606             89,766             125,615           129,682           130,239           

Total expenses 2,277,823$      2,271,198$      2,232,728$      2,244,002$      2,124,568$      

Source:  Duplin County Board of Education, North Carolina, Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Note:  Other expense includes indirect costs, materials and supplies, repairs and maintenance, depreciation, and other expenses.

Note:  Nominal dollars reflect actual dollars of the period of the transaction.  Constant dollars reflect dollars having a constant general 
purchasing power as shown by the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U)  (Calendar years 1982-1984 = 100).

EXPRESSED IN CONSTANT DOLLARS

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Proprietary Fund - Food Services Operations

Expenses by Category
Last Ten Fiscal Years

EXPRESSED IN CONSTANT DOLLARS

EXPRESSED IN NOMINAL DOLLARS

EXPRESSED IN NOMINAL DOLLARS
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Table 9

Percentage of
Year Ended Installment Total Primary Personal Per

June 30 Purchases Government Income Capita
2017 5,269,348$         5,269,348$         N/A N/A

2016 5,142,625           5,142,625           N/A 87

2015 4,677,772           4,677,772           0.24% 80

2014 4,812,276           4,812,276           0.23% 81

2013 4,341,836           4,341,836           0.22% 72

2012 1,058,132           1,058,132           0.00% 18

2011 137,314              137,314              0.01% 3

2010 172,541              172,541              0.03% 0

2009 -                          -                          0.00% 4

2008 219,784              219,784              0.02% 8

N/A = Not available

Source:  Duplin County Board of Education, North Carolina, Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Note:  Duplin County School System cannot incur debt without obtaining prior approval from the Board.

Note:  This table is a ten year schedule.  However, current year county level annual population estimates are not released by the U.S. Census Bureau  
until the spring of the following year.  Therefore, June 30, 2016 population based information will be shown above as "N/A", and the information will
be reported for the year ended June 30, 2018, if applicable.

Note:  This table is a ten year schedule.  However, county level annual income data is not released by the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis until the 
month of April, and is always two years behind.  Therefore, June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2017 income based information will be shown above as "N/A", 
and the June 30, 2016 information will be reported for the year ended June 30, 2018, if applicable.

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Table 11

Year Ended Teaching Pupil/ Student Attendance Percentage of Students
June 30 Staff(1) Students(2) Teacher Ratio Percentage(2) Receiving Free/Reduced Lunch(3)

2017 635 9,860 1/16 94.52% 75.41%
2016 648 9,952 1/15 94.40% 74.89%
2015 636 9,881 1/16 94.25% 74.74%
2014 619 9,597 1/16 92.00% 71.83%
2013 616 9,315 1/15 94.82% 72.33%
2012 610 9,158 1/15 95.47% 76.40%
2011 614 8,945 1/15 95.53% 69.76%
2010 606 8,837 1/15 95.28% 69.71%
2009 616 8,815 1/14 95.52% 67.36%
2008 616 8,865 1/14 95.41% 66.38%

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Student Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Table 11(continued)

Year Ended Percentage of Graduates
June 30 White Black Asian Hispanic Other Graduates(4) Continuing Education(4)

2017 34% 24% 1% 40% 3% 574              83%
2016 42% 28% 1% 27% 2% 602              84%
2015 40% 31% 0% 28% 1% 551              81%
2014 35% 24% 0% 38% 3% 469              85%
2013 36% 25% 0% 37% 2% 456              85%
2012 38% 25% 0% 35% 2% 533              85%
2011 38% 26% 0% 34% 2% 422              87%
2010 39% 30% 0% 31% 0% 450              84%
2009 40% 30% 0% 30% 0% 468              87%
2008 40% 32% 0% 28% 0% 431              86%

Sources:

(1) Public School Personnel Summary, North Carolina Department of Public Instruction

(2) NC Department of Public Instruction Average Daily Attendance(ADA):Average Daily Membership(ADM) Ratio Reports

(3) Duplin County Board of Education Student Data

(4) North Carolina Public Schools Statistical Profile (2008-2017 Editions). 

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Student Statistics (continued)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ethnic Distribution Percentage(4)
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Table 12

Year Ended June 30 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Officials, admins, mgrs 14 11 12 13 13 17 16 17 21 21
Principals 16 16 16 16 16 15 16 16 17 16
Asst. Principals, non-teaching 17 17 15 15 13 15 17 20 20 20

Total administrators 47 44 43 44 42 47 49 53 58 57

Elementary teachers 433 433 434 434 438 445 443 450 473 456
Secondary teachers 177 177 169 177 171 169 170 175 170 173
Other teachers 6 6 3 3 1 2 6 11 5 6

Total teachers 616 616 606 614 610 616 619 636 648 635

Guidance 23 22 22 22 23 20 21 21 23 26
Psychological 1 0 0 - 1 1 1 0 0 1
Librarian, audiovisual 15 14 15 15 15 14 14 14 15 15
Consultant, supervisor - - - - - 2 0 0 0 0
Other professionals 26 26 26 27 31 30 35 37 41 30

Total professionals 728 722 712 722 722 730 739 761 785 764

Teacher Assistants 219 222 207 208 203 202 211 208 203 195
Technicians 5 5 6 6 7 8 8 8 8
Clerical, secretarial 64 66 71 68 69 67 68 68 68 66
Service workers 158 164 120 125 122 124 132 131 131 120
Skilled crafts 34 33 31 30 28 26 24 27 29 27
Laborers, unskilled 3 4 4 2 2 2 3 3 0 0

Total employees 1,206 1,216 1,150 1,161 1,152 1,158 1,185 1,206 1,224 1,180

Source:  North Carolina Public Schools Statistical Profile (2008 -2017 Editions)

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Full-time Equivalent Governmental Employees by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Table 13

Year Ended Bachelors Masters Advanced Doctorate
June 30 Minimum Maximum Average Degree(2) Degree(2) Degree(2) Degree(2)

2017 35,000$         63,530$         40,755$         N/A N/A N/A N/A
2016 35,000           61,380           42,498           516 126 2 2
2015 33,000           61,380           39,299           490 116 1 1
2014 30,800           59,500           37,977           479 148 1 1
2013 30,800           65,270           39,714           497 90 0 1
2012 30,430           64,625           39,734           489 106 1 1
2011 30,430           64,750           40,046           485 113 2 2
2010 30,430           64,750           40,917           470 120 2 2
2009 30,430           64,750           40,994           497 111 3 3
2008 29,750           64,160           40,541           470 120 2 2

The above tabulation represents total salaries but does not include the following:

(a) Longevity payments, ranging from 1 1/2% to 4 1/2% of the annual salary, made to each teacher for 10 or more years of service.
(b) Payments of varying amounts for performing extra duties.
(c) Bonus payments

Sources:
(1) Duplin County Board of Education Payroll Data
(2) Public Schools of North Carolina - Statistical Profile

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
Instructional Personnel
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Teacher Salaries(1)
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Table 14

Year Current Over/(Under)
Site Built Capacity Membership Capacity Condition

B. F. Grady Elementary 1994 523 932 78% Good

Beulaville Elementary 1996 935 930 -1% Good

Charity Middle 1951 577 491 -15% Fair

Chinquapin Elementary 1955 600 558 -7% Good

Warsaw Elementary 1974 632 585 -7% Good

Duplin Early College 2009 160 182 14% Good

E. E. Smith Middle 1954 545 365 -33% Fair

East Duplin High 1962 750 1,018 36% Good

James Kenan High 1956 645 739 15% Good

Kenansville Elementary 1980 460 395 -14% Good

North Duplin Elementary 1974 669 695 4% Good

North Duplin Jr. Sr. High 1955 654 531 -19% Good

Rose Hill-Magnolia Elementary 1972 742 772 4% Good

Wallace Elementary 1974 759 828 9% Good

Wallace-Rose Hill High 1955 715 691 -3% Good

Warsaw Middle 1947 412 239 -42% Fair

Source:  Duplin County Board of Education PowerSchool software.
                

DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
School Building Data

June 30, 2017
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Table 15

Year Ended June 30 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Population estimate (1) 56,810 57,434 58,599 59,309 59,466
Personal income (2) $1,568,481,000 $1,590,950,000 $1,703,301,000 $1,709,665,000 $1,849,253,000
Per capita income (2) $27,609 $27,700 $29,067 $28,826 $31,098

Median age (3) 35.3 35.4 35.6 35.7 35.7

School enrollment (4) 8,865 8,815 8,837 8,945 9,158

Unemployment rate (5) 4.4% 5.8% 9.6% 9.0% 9.8%

Year Ended June 30 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Population estimate (1) 59,241 59,258 58,670 58,969 N/A
Personal income (2) $1,935,393,000 $2,128,538,000 $1,911,853,000 N/A N/A
Per capita income (2) $32,670 $35,920 $32,587 N/A N/A

Median age (3) 35.6 35.6 35.7 38.9 38.7

School enrollment (4) 9,315 9,597 9,881 9,952 9,860

Unemployment rate (5) 9.4% 6.9% 5.8% 5.5% 4.6%

N/A = Not Available

Sources:
(1) U.S. Census Bureau.  Estimates are as of beginning of fiscal year.
(2) Bureau of Economic Analysis
(3) Office of State Budget and Management
(4) North Carolina Department of Public Instruction
(5) North Carolina Employment Security Commission, annual average for prior calendar year

Note:  This table is a ten year schedule.  However, current year county level annual population estimates are not released by the U.S. Census Bureau  
until the spring of the following year.  Therefore, June 30, 2017 population based information will be shown above as "N/A", and the information will
be reported for the year ended June 30, 2018, if applicable.

Note:  This table is a ten year schedule.  However, county level annual income data is not released by the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis until the
month of April, and is always two years behind.  Therefore, June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2017 income based information will be shown above as "N/A", 
and the June 30, 2016 information will be reported for the year ended June 30, 2018, if applicable.

DUPLIN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Table 16

Percentage of Percentage of  
Total County Total County

Employer Employees (1) Rank Employment Employees (1) Rank Employment
Butterball LLC 1000+ 1 5% -  -

Smithfield Foods, Inc. 1000+ 2 5% - -

House of Raeford, Inc. 1000+ 3 5% 1000+ 3 5%

Duplin County Schools 1000+ 4 5% 1000+ 4 5%

Murphy Family Ventures LLC 500-999 5 3% 500-999 6 3%

County of Duplin 500-999 6 3% 500-999 8 3%

Guilford Mills, Inc. 500-999 7 3% 500-999 5 3%

Bay Valley Foods LLC 500-999 8 3% 500-999 7 3%

Vidant Medical Center 250-499 9 2% -  -

Burch Equip LLC 250-499 10 2% -  -

Carolina Turkeys - - 1000+ 1 5%

Murphy-Brown LLC - - 1000+ 2 5%

Johnson Breeders, Inc. - - 250-499 9 2%

Duplin General Hospital, Inc. - - 250-499 10 2%
36.00% 36.00%

Total County Employment (1)
24,839 23,044

Sources:

(1) Labor and Economic Analysis Division of the NC Department of Commerce

2016 2007

DUPLIN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Principal Employers

For Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2007
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Table 17

Certificates Board of General Limited General Limited Percentage of
Year Ended Notes of Education Obligation Obligation Capitalized Notes Obligation Obligation Total Primary Personal Per

June 30 Payable Participation Judgment Debt Debt Leases Payable Debt Debt Government Income Capita
2017 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2016 9,847,522   -                    -                -                60,514,251  -                3,626,882    -                 14,775,403 88,764,058    N/A N/A

2015 10,012,316 -                    -                -                -                  -                3,883,629    -                 15,314,495 29,210,440    1.53% 498      

2014 10,171,014 1,357,827     -                -                -                  -                1,359,427    -                 15,843,587 28,731,855    1.35% 485      

2013 10,323,424 2,655,657     -                -                -                  -                1,711,577    15,915,000 15,915,000 46,520,658    2.40% 785      

2012 10,470,245 4,093,487     -                450,000     -                  -                1,181,223    16,593,300 -                 32,788,255    1.77% 551      

2011 10,633,783 5,451,317     -                910,000     -                  -                1,294,521    16,958,500 -                 35,248,121    2.06% 594      

2010 10,903,563 6,754,147     4,795,784  1,380,000  -                  -                1,406,457    17,306,000 -                 42,545,951    2.50% 726      

2009 11,455,539 8,016,977     -                1,865,000  -                  14,465      1,050,143    17,635,200 -                 40,037,324    2.52% 697      

2008 12,094,556 9,249,807     -                2,360,000  -                  49,131      1,157,060    17,949,400 -                 42,859,954    2.73% 754      

N/A = Not Available

Source:  Duplin County, North Carolina, Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Note:  This table is a ten year schedule.  However, current year county level annual population estimates are not released by the U.S. Census Bureau  
until the spring of the following year.  Therefore, June 30, 2017 population based information will be shown above as "N/A", and the information will
be reported for the year ended June 30, 2018, if applicable.

Note:  This table is a ten year schedule.  However, county level annual income data is not released by the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis until the 
month of April, and is always two years behind.  Therefore, June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2017 income based information will be shown above as "N/A", 
and the June 30, 2016 information will be reported for the year ended June 30, 2018, if applicable.

Note:  This table is a ten year schedule.  However, Duplin County's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017 had not been released at the time of this report.
Therefore, June 30, 2017 information from Duplin County's financial statements will be shown above as "N/A" and will be reported for the year ended June 30, 2018, if applicable.

DUPLIN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Business -Type ActivitiesGovernmental Activities
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Table 18

Percentage of Percentage of
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable 

Taxpayer Assessed Value Rank Assessed Value Assessed Value Rank Assessed Value

Butterball, Inc. 133,277,918$         1 3.25% -$                            -

Murphy-Brown LLC 93,735,070             2 2.29% - -

Duplin Land Development 81,352,907             3 1.98% 40,340,506             4 1.50%

House of Raeford 57,457,607             4 1.40% 14,348,814             10 0.53%

Guilford Mills 48,466,284             5 1.18% 51,614,001             2 1.92%

Duke Progress Energy 40,060,644             6 0.98% -  -

Nash Johnson & Sons 39,908,395             7 0.97% 22,940,780             7 0.85%

Murphy Family Ventures 34,295,617             8 0.84% - -

Coastal Carolinia Green Power 27,544,732             9 0.67% - -

Four County EMC 27,928,492             10 0.68% 16,417,589             9 0.61%

Carolina Turkeys - - 84,484,276             1 3.14%

Murphy Farms, Inc. - - 45,994,755             3 1.71%

Carroll's Food - - 33,747,276             5 1.25%

Murfarm, Inc. - - 33,491,808             5 1.25%

Carolina Power & Light Co. - - 20,596,656             8 0.77%

584,027,666$         14.24% 363,976,461$         13.53%

Total Assessed Valuation 4,099,207,534$      2,689,056,000$      

Source:  Duplin County, North Carolina, Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2016.  

Note:  This table is a ten year schedule.  However, Duplin County's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017 had not been released at the time of this report.
Therefore, the most recent ten year comparison of principal property tax payers released by Duplin County is shown above

20072016

DUPLIN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Principal Property Taxpayers

June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2007
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Table 19

Total Current Tax Percent of Levy
 Year Ended June 30 Tax Levy Collections Collected

2017 N/A N/A N/A
2016 26,948,314        26,102,572        96.86%
2015 29,749,210        28,972,293        97.39%
2014 29,583,582        28,461,798        96.21%
2013 28,023,946        26,579,982        94.85%
2012 27,109,094        25,724,577        94.89%
2011 25,952,188        24,537,688        94.55%
2010 25,836,831        24,353,960        94.26%
2009 25,128,446        23,741,088        94.48%
2008 24,233,502        22,867,344        94.36%

Total Current Tax
 Year Ended June 30 Tax Levy Collections

2017 N/A N/A
2016 11,181,038        10,830,134        
2015 12,466,250        12,140,687        
2014 12,412,188        11,941,529        
2013 12,001,484        11,383,095        
2012 11,813,374        11,210,041        
2011 11,497,412        10,870,756        
2010 11,853,660        11,173,335        
2009 11,650,098        11,006,888        
2008 11,074,882        10,450,538        

N/A = Not Available

Source:  Duplin County, North Carolina, Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Note:  Nominal dollars reflect actual dollars of the period of the transaction. Constant dollars reflect dollars having a
constant general purchasing power as shown by the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) 
(Calendar years 1982-1984=100).

DUPLIN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Property Tax Levies and Current Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

EXPRESSED IN NOMINAL DOLLARS

EXPRESSED IN CONSTANT DOLLARS
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Certified Public Accountants

ANDERSON SMITH & WIKE PLLCA S W

 
 
 
 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 

with Government Auditing Standards 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
To the Duplin County Board of Education 
Kenansville, North Carolina 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of Duplin County Board of Education, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprises the Duplin County 
Board of Education, North Carolina’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 6, 2017.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Duplin County Board 
of Education’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider material weaknesses.  However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.   
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Duplin County Board of Education’s 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

  
October 6, 2017 
West End, North Carolina 
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Certified Public Accountants

ANDERSON SMITH & WIKE PLLCA S W

 
 
 
 

Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each Major Federal Program 
And Internal Control Over Compliance; In Accordance With OMB Uniform Guidance and 

the State Single Audit Implementation Act 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 

To the Duplin County Board of Education 
Kenansville, North Carolina 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Duplin County Board of Education, North Carolina’s compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for 
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have 
a direct and material effect on each of the Board’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2017.  The Duplin County Board of Education’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants applicable to its federal programs.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Duplin County Board of 
Education’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and the State Single 
Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance, and the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about the Duplin County of Education’s compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Duplin County Board 
of Education’s compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, the Duplin County Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017.  
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of the Duplin County Board of Education is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit, we considered the Duplin County Board of Education’s internal control 
over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Duplin County Board of 
Education’s internal control over compliance.   
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
  
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

  
October 6, 2017 
West End, North Carolina 
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Certified Public Accountants

ANDERSON SMITH & WIKE PLLCA S W

 
 
 
 

Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each Major State 
Program and Internal Control Over Compliance; In Accordance With OMB Uniform Guidance and 

The State Single Audit Implementation Act 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
To the Duplin County Board of Education 
Kenansville, North Carolina 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 
 
We have audited Duplin County Board of Education, North Carolina’s compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, 
issued by the Local Government Commission that could have a direct and material effect on each of the 
Board’s major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. The Duplin County Board of Education’s 
major State programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants applicable to its State programs.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Duplin County Board of 
Education’s major state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and applicable sections of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) as described in the Audit Manual for 
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those 
standards, Uniform Guidance, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major State 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Duplin County Board 
of Education’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.  
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Duplin County Board of 
Education’s compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major State Program 
 
In our opinion, the Duplin County Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2017.  
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of the Duplin County Board of Education is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Duplin County Board of Education’s 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major State program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major state program and 
to test and report on internal control over compliance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Duplin County Board of Education’s internal control over 
compliance. 
  
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
State program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

  
October 6, 2017 
West End, North Carolina 
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Page 1 of 2 
DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 
Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 
 Material weakness(es) identified?  No 
 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
 considered to be material weaknesses  None Reported 
 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted  No 
 
Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major federal programs: 
 
 Material weakness(es) identified?  No 
 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
 considered to be material weaknesses None Reported 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for   
major federal programs   Unmodified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? No 
 
Identification of major federal programs: 
 
     CFDA Numbers Names of Federal Programs or Clusters 
              
 84.010  Title I - Educationally Deprived Children  
 
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 
and Type B Programs $  750,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?    Yes 
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Page 2 of 2 
DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 
State Awards 
 
Internal control over major State programs: 
 
 Material weakness(es) identified? No 
 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
 considered to be material weaknesses None Reported 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance 
for major State programs Unmodified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
    reported in accordance with the State Single Audit 
    Implementation Act No 
 
Identification of major State programs: 
 
 Program Name 
 
 State Public School Fund 
  
    
Section II - Financial Statement Findings 
 
No findings were noted that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

 
 
Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
No findings and questioned costs related to the audit of federal awards aggregating $25,000 or more 
were noted. 
 
 
Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
No findings and questioned costs related to the audit of federal awards aggregating $25,000 or more 
were noted. 
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DUPLIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 
There were no audit findings reported in the prior year. 



State/
 Federal Pass-through

Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Grantor's 
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures

Federal Grants:

U. S. Department of Agriculture
School Nutrition Program (Note 3)
Child Nutrition Cluster:

Noncash Assistance (Commodities):
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Agriculture:

National School Lunch Program 10.555 398,780$         

Cash Assistance:
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction:

School Breakfast Program 10.553 1,195,873        
National School Lunch Program 10.555 3,324,305        
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 26,838             

  Cash Assistance Subtotal 4,547,016        

Total Child Nutrition Cluster: 4,945,796        

Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Grant 10.582 18,788             

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 4,964,584        

U.S. Department of Education
Office of Elementary and Secondary Education

Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction:
Title I, Grants to Local Educational Agencies

Educationally Deprived Children 84.010 PRC 050 4,190,222        

Education for Homeless Children 84.196 PRC 026 33,492             
Race to the Top - Wireless Infrastructure 85.395 PRC 160 -                  
Supporting Effective Instruction 84.367 PRC 103 381,991           
Rural and Low Income Education 84.658 PRC 109 206,503           
English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 PRC 104 168,966           
Language Acquisition - Significant Increase 84.365 PRC 111 11,864             
Special Education - State Personnel Development 84.323 PRC 082 39,263             
Title I, Migrant Education 84.011 PRC 051 77,730             

Office of Special Education and Rehabilitative Services
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction:

Special Education Cluster:
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
    - Education of the Handicapped 84.027 PRC 060 2,088,665        

84.027 PRC 118 10,000             
    - Targeted Assistance for Preschool 84.027 PRC 119 3,117               
    - Preschool Handicapped 84.173 PRC 049 2,132               

Total  Special Education Cluster: 2,103,914        
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State/
 Federal Pass-through

Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Grantor's 
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures

Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction:
Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology 
Education Act Amendments of 1990
Basic Grants to States 
    - Program Development 84.048 PRC 017 189,612           

Total U.S. Department of Education 7,403,557        

U.S. Department of Defense
Direct Program:

JROTC NONE  157,400           

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Health Resources and Services Administration

Direct Program:
Head Start 93.600 1,288,193        

Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction:
Title V Abstinence Education 93.235 PRC 101 5,222               

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 1,293,415        

Total federal assistance 13,818,956      

State Grants:

N.C. Department of Public Instruction:
State Public School Fund 56,148,606      
Driver Training - SPSF PRC 012 154,156           
School Technology Fund - SPSF PRC 015 116,536           
Vocational Education
    - State Months of Employment PRC 013 2,648,035        
    - Program Support Funds PRC 014 155,497           

Passed-through Duplin County
Public School Building Capital Fund - Lottery 2,172,691        

Total N.C. Department of Public Instruction  61,395,521      

N.C. Department of Public Instruction:
School buses - Noncash 785,003           
Textbooks - Noncash 10,654             

Total N.C. Department of Public Instruction - Noncash 795,657           

N.C. Department of Health and Human Services:
North Carolina Pre-Kindergarten Program 1,184,100        
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State/
 Federal Pass-through

Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Grantor's 
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures

Passed-through the Duplin County Partnership for Children
Smart Start 192,725           

Total N.C. Department of Health and Human Services 1,376,825        

N.C. Department of Cultural Resources
N.C. Arts Council Grant 9,049               

N.C. Department of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
Gang Awareness Grant 760                  

N.C. Department of Agriculture
State Reduced Breakfast Funds 12,835             

Office of the Governor
Education Workforce & Innovation Program 254,197           

Total State assistance 63,844,844      

Total federal and State assistance 77,663,800$    

 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards:

The following are clustered by the NC Department of Public Instruction and are treated separately for state audit
requirement purposes: School Nutrition Program  

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards (SEFSA) includes the federal and State
grant activity of Duplin County Board of Education under the programs of the federal government and the State of
North Carolina for the year ended June 30, 2017. The information in this SEFSA is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Because the
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Duplin County Board of Education, it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of Duplin County Schools.
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Note 3.  Cluster of Programs         

Note 1.  Basis of Presentation

Note 2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the SEFSA are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are
not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.  

Duplin County Schools has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.
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